PN 3 R BN A

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Roli Cali

Call to Order

Prayer and Pledge

Approval of Agenda and Executive Session Announcements

Public Hearing(s})
Citizen Comments (Limited to the first 5 citizens to sign in and a limit of 3 minutes each)

Public Announcements, Awards and Recognitions
Staff Comments and Monthly Reports

A
B.
C.
b.

Police Report

Fire Report

Public Works Report
City Manager Report

Consent Agenda (Any ltem May be Removed for Individual Consideration)

m Qoowy

Minutes from the December 19, 2019, Board of Commissicners Meeting

Minutes from the December 19, 2019, Special-Called Board of Commissioners Meeting

Ordinance 2019-32, An Ordinance Establishing the Compensation of City of Fairview Elected Officials
Ordinance 2019-33, An Ordinance Establishing Employment Benefits Eligibility for City of Fairview
Elected Officials

Ordinance 2019-38, A Resolution to Adopt Revisions (o the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Fairview,
Tennessee, to Amend the Zoning Ordinance as it Pertains to Article IV "Supplementary lUse Regulations”,
Section 4-101.5 *"Provisions Applicable to Community Facility Activities”, Subsection 101.5.12 “Special
Personal and Group Care Facilities”

Ordinance 2019-39, A Resolution to Adopt Revisions to the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Fairview,
Tennessee, to Amend the Zoning Ordinance as it Pertains to Article Vill *“Commercial District Regulations”
Ordinance 2019-40, A Resolution to Adopt Revisions to the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Fairview,
Tennessee, t¢ Amend the Zoning Ordinance as it Pertains to Article XVil "Administration and
Enforcement”, Section 17-102.2 *Zoning Permits,” Subsection 102.2 “Grading Permits.”

Ordinance 2019-41, A Resoluticn to Adopt Revisions to the Zoning Ordinance for the City of Fairview,
Tennessee, to Amend the Zoning Ordinance as it Pertains to Article XVH “Administration and
Enforcement,” Section 17-103 “Required Plans,” Subsections 17-103.8 “Bonding of Site Improvements,”
and 17-103.8 "Maintenance Bonds."

10. Old Business

A

Second and Final Reading on Ordinance 2018-26, An Ordinance t¢ Amend the City of Fairview
Zoning Ordinance by Changing the Official Zoning Map for Tax Map 043, Parcel 23.00, Consisting of
111 Acres, Located on Cox Pike, From a R3-40 (Low-Density Residential) Zening District to a R-20
PUD (Medium-Density Residential Planned Unit Development) Zoning District {141 Proposed Lots)

11. New Business

A

Ordinance 2019-38, Amended Budget for Fiscal Year 2020

12. Communications from the Mayor and Commissioners

A
B.

Commissioner
Cominissioner




C. Commissioner
D. Vice Mayor
E. Mayor

13. Adjournment




ORDINANCE NO. _2019-32

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE COMPENSATION ¢
CITY OF FAIRVIEW ELECTED OFFICIALS

WHEREAS, the City of Fairview, Tennessee, currently has as its part-time
elected officials its mayor, city commissioners and general sessions court judge,
and

WHEREAS, the general sessions (municipal) court clerk will be a full-time
elected position upon the installation of the court clerk elected in 2020 City of
Fairview general elections, and

WHEREAS, the city desires to codify the compensation of its elected officials
pursuant to its city charter, its budgeting authority, and TCA 8-24-102 which
governs annual salary schedule for general sessions court clerks, and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW,
TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

BE IT ORDAINED, that the City of Fairview Municipal Code is hereby amended,
and Title 1 Chapter 6, entitled “Elected Officials Compensation” is hereby
created; and Section 1-601, entitled “City Mayor Compensation” is hereby
created; and Section 1-602, entitled “City Commissioner Compensation” is
hereby created; and Section 1-603 entitled “General Sessions Court Judge
Compensation” is hereby created; and Section 1-604 entitled “General Sessions
Court Clerk Compensation” is hereby created, and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, Title 1, Chapter 6, Section 6-101, shall read as
follows:

6-101. City Mayor Compensation. Effective January 1, 2023, and in
accordance with 6-20-204 of the Fairview City Charter, the compensation of the
city mayor shall be $1,000 per month and shall be payable on the last regular
city payroll distribution of each month; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, Title 1, Chapter 8, Section 6-102, shall read as
follows:

6-102. City Commissioner Compensation. Effective January 1, 2021, and in
accordance with 6-20-204 of the Fairview City Charter, the compensation of
each city commissioner shall be $950 per month and shall be payable on the
last regular city payroll distribution of each month; and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, Title 1, Chapter 6, Section 6-103, shall read as
follows:

6-103. General Sessions Court Judge Compensation. Effective January 1,
2021, the compensation for the city’s general sessions court judge shall be not
less than $2,200 per month and shall be payable on the last regular city payroll
distribution of each month; and



BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, Title 1, Chapter 8, Section 6-104, shall read as
follows:

6-104. General Sessions Court Clerk Compensation. Effective January 1,
2021, the compensation for the city's general sessions court clerk shall not be
less than the applicable annual salary prescribed in the most recently adopted
“Trustee, Clerks of Court, County Clerk and Register Deeds Fiscal Year Salary
Schedule” pursuant to TCA 8-24-102. The general sessions court clerk shall be
paid on the same payroll distribution schedule as are full-time employees of the
City of Fairview.

MAYOR

CITY RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

Passed First Reading DC\CC -l-qﬂtﬂt--f Iq. qu

Passed Second Reading




ORDINANCE NO. _ 2019-33

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS EL
FOR CITY OF FAIRVIEW ELECTED OFFICIALS

WHEREAS, the City of Fairview, Tennessee, desires to codify employment
benefit eligibility for its part-time and full-time elected officials, and

WHEREAS, the city mayor, city commissioners and general sessions court
judge are part-time elected officials, and

WHEREAS, the city’s general sessions court clerk will be a full-time elected
position upon the swearing in of the clerk elected in the 2020 City of Fairview
municipal general elections, and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW,
TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

BE IT ORDAINED, that the City of Fairview Municipal Code is hereby amended,
and Title 1 Chapter 7, entitled “Elected Officials Employment Benefits” is hereby
created; and Section 7-101 entitled “Part-time Elected Officials Employment
Benefits” is hereby created; and Section 7-102 entitled “Full-time Elected
Officials Employment Benefits” is hereby created, and

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, Title 1, Chapter 7, Section 7-101, shall read as
follows:

7-101. Part-time Elected Officials Employment Benefits.

(1) The city mayor, each city commissioner and the city’s general sessions court
judge are part-time elected positions for the city.

(2) Effective January 1, 2021, each city commissioner and the city's general
sessions court judge shall be eligible to participate in the city’s health insurance
plan offered to its full-time city employees. This participation in the city’s health
insurance plan shall be done so with 100% of the plan participation cost being
paid by the elected official and no subsidy or offset being paid by the city.

(3) Effective January 1, 2023, the city mayor shall be eligible to participate in the
city’s health insurance plan offered to its full-time city employees. This
participation in the city's health insurance plan shall be done so with 100% of the
plan participation cost being paid by the elected official and no subsidy or offset
being paid by the city.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, Title 1, Chapter 7, Section 7-102, shall read as
follows:

7-102. Full-time Elected Officials Employment Benefits.

(1) Elected officials shall be considered full-time if their duties require an
average of thirty (30) hours of service per week or one hundred thirty (130)



hours of service per month, or as full-time is otherwise defined by the Fair Labor
Standards Act (FLSA).

(2) The city's general sessions court clerk is a full-time elected position.

(3) Upon the installation to office of the city’s general sessions court clerk
elected in the City of Fairview 2020 general elections, and for each day
thereafter that the city has a general sessions court clerk, the clerk shall be
eligible for the following employment benefits:

(a) Participation in the city’s health insurance plan offered to full-time city
employees, and at the same contribution rates and/or subsidies offered to

full-time city employees.

(b) Participation in the city’s retirement plan offered to full-time city
employees, and at the same contribution rates and/or subsidies offered to
full-time city employees.

(4) Full-time elected positions created after the passage of this ordinance shall
be afforded eligibility for full-time employment benefits as specified and
described in (3)(a) and (3)(b) of this Section.

(5) Full-time elected officials shall not be eligible for any employment benefits
other than those specified and described in (3)(a) and (3)(b) of this Section.

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this ordinance shall be effective upon its
adoption and nothing in this ordinance shall in any way diminish elected official
benefits participation in effect prior to the adoption of this ordinance or prior to
the effective dates prescribed Sections 7-101 and 7-102 above.

MAYOR

CITY RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

Passed First Reading .DC\CC\'WLDCV l [7; zolq

Passed Second Reading




ORDINANCE NO. __ 2019-38

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, TO /
THE ZONING ORDINANCE AS IT PERTAINS TO ARTICLE IV
“SUPPLEMENTARY USE REGULATIONS”, SECTION 4-101.5 “PROVISIONS
APPLICABLE TO COMMUNITY FACILITY ACTIVITIES”, SUBSECTION
101.5.12 “SPECIAL PERSONAL AND GROUP CARE FACILITIES.

WHEREAS, the City of Fairview Planning Commission recommends to the City
of Fairview Board of Commissioners to amend current provisions of the zoning
ordinance as they pertain to plans and permits in order to best serve the citizens
of Fairview, and

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS,

The Fairview, Tennessee Zoning Articles, Article IV “Supplementary Use
Regulations”, Section 4-101.5 “Provisions Applicable to Community Facility
Activities”, Subsection 101.5.12 “Special Personal And Group Care Facilities”
hereby removes and replaces the current regulations to read as follows:

1. Special Personal and Group Care Facilities
In all districts where authorized as a use permitted with supplemental
provisions (SUP) or a conditional (C) use, the following supplementary
regulations shall apply to uses classified in the special personal and
group care activity type as indicated.

A. All Activities

i.  The purpose(s) of the facility must be clearly established by the
agency responsible and the appropriate staff services must be
provided to achieve the stated purpose(s). Written findings shall be
presented to the Planning Commission regarding these
requirements based on advice from such agencies as the
Tennessee Department of Human Services.

ii. An appropriate license must be secured for any activity regulated
by any public agency, including the Tennessee Department of
Human Services. Any activity lawfully regulated by any public
agency may be permitted for only that time period for which a valid
license is obtained. Where grades or classes of approvals are
granted, only the most restrictive may be permitted.

ii. Necessary utilities including a central sewage collection and
treatment system (as defined by this ordinance) shall be available
to the site.

iv.  Notwithstanding the previously listed provisions, the Board of
Zoning Appeals may be permitted to vary the required yards and
the screening strip for parking when the application involves a
change in activities in existing structures. The plan shall provide for



compensating features to offset any potentially adverse conditions
that might be brought about by said variance.

B. Family Care and Group Care Facilities

i. Family Care and Group Care facilities shall meet the State of
Tennessee Department of Health standards and requirements of
the Tennessee Department of Human Services.

ii. Family Care and Group Care shalf meet all bulk regulaticns of the
zoned district.

ii. The minimum side and rear yards for group care facilities
accommodating thirteen (13} or more persons shall be fifty (5C)
feet for a one- or two-story building, increased by five (5) feet for
each story above two (2).

C. All Other Facilities

i.  No such facility shall be permitted on a zone lot within any
residential district, unless it contains twice the lot area
requirements of the zone district.

i.  All bulk regulations of the district shall be met.

ii. The requirements of the accessory off-street parking presented in
Section 11-103.2, shall apply to the particular use as specified.

2. Waste Disposal Operations
In all districts where authorized as a use permitted with supplemental
provisions (SUP), the supplementary regulations established in
Section 9-107 shall apply to uses classified in the waste disposal
operations activity type.

The remaining sections of this Article and Section remain unchanged by
this Ordinance.

MAYOR

CITY RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY



Passed First Reading D(“ L fc’-{'\f‘nw o \A | 104

Passed Second Reading




ORDINANCE NO. 2019-39

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, TO
THE ZONING ORDINANCE AS IT PERTAINS TO ARTICLE VI
“COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS”

WHEREAS, the City of Fairview Planning Commission recommends to the City
of Fairview Board of Commissioners to amend current provisions of the zoning
ordinance as they pertain to plans and permits in order to best serve the citizens
of Fairview, and

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS,

The Fairview, Tennessee Zoning Articles, Article VIII "Commercial District
Regulations” hereby removes and replaces the current regulations to read as
attached:

SEE ATTACHED ARTICLE 8: COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS

The remaining sections of this Article and Section remain unchanged by this
Ordinance.

MAYOR

CITY RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

Passed First Reading DFC@MBPM If?Il?.DlG[

Passed Second Reading




ARTICLE 8; COMMERCIAL DISTRICT REGULATIONS

SECTIONS

8-101: PURPOSES OF COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

8-102: USES AND STRUCTURES

8-103: BULK REGULATIONS

8-104: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF CG — COMMERCIAL-GENERAL DISTRICTS
8-105: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF Ci - COMMERCIAL-INTERCANGE DISTRICTS
8-106: INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

8-107: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF CMU, COMMERCIAL - MIXED USE DISTRICTS
8-108: INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

8-109:INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

8-110: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF OG, OFFICE GENERAL DISTRICTS

8-111: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF MSMU, MAIN STREET MIXED USE DISTRICT
8-112: SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGN PROVISIONS

8-101; PURPOSES OF COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

8-101.1 General Purposes

The commercial districts established by this ordinance are designed fo
poromote and protect the health, safety, morals, convenience, order,
prosperity, and other aspects of the general welfare. These goals include,
among others, the following:

1. To provide sufficient space, in appropriate locafions in proximity to
established residential areas, for local retail and service trades catering
specifically to the recurring shopping needs of the occupants of nearby
residences.

2. To protect both retail and service developments and nearby residences
against fire, explosions, toxic and noxious matter, radiation, and other
hazards, and against offensive noise, vibration, smoke, dust and other
particulate matter, odorous matter, heat, humidity, glare, and other
objectionable influences.

3. To protect both retail and service developments and nearby residences
against congestion, by regulating the intensity of retail and service
developments consistent with thelr marketing functions, by restricting
those types of establishments which generate heavy traffic, and by
providing for off-street parking and loading facilifies.

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8—Page 1



4, To provide sufficient and appropriate space, and in particular sufficient
areq, to meet the needs of the ared’s expected future need for planned
commercial floor space, including the need for off-street parking space
in areas where a large proportion of customers come by automobile,
and to encourage the tendency of commercial estaklishments fo
concenirate in integrated planned developments, to the mutual
advantage of both consumers and merchants.

5. To provide sufficient space in appropriate locations for commercial
districts to satisfy specific functional needs of the area, and in particular
the need for medical services, and the needs of the general public
traveling along major thoroughfares.

6. To provide sufficient space in appropriate locations for the mixture of
compatible residential and restricted commercial developments where
standards for development will provide protection for the environmental
essentials of either,

7. To provide appropriate locations for transitional uses intervening
between commercial developments and residential areas, and thereby
alleviate the friction inherent between dissimilar activities.

8. To provide sufficient space in appropriate locations for all types of
commercial and miscellaneous service aciivities.

9. To provide freedom of architectural design, in order fo encourage the
development of more atfractive, efficient, and econemic building
forms, within appropriate standards which ensure that buildings are in
character with their surroundings.

10.To promote the most desirable use of land and direction of building
development in accord with a well-considered plan, fo promote stability
of commercial development, to strengthen the economic base of the
areq, to protect the character of the districts and their peculiar suitability
for particular uses, to conserve the value of land and buildings.

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Crdinance
Article 8 - Page 2



8-102: USES AND STRUCTURES

8-102.1 General Provisions

Principal uses of buildings or other sfructures and land have been classified and
combined into maijor classes and activity types in Article lii, of this ordinance. The
procedure for interpreting the classes and type of activities is provided in Article
3, Use Regulations. The following sections provide information regarding uses and
structures which are classified as “principal permitted” {P), "permitied with
supplemental provisions" (SUP} or "conditional” {C} uses within the various
commercial districts. The supplemental design provisions with which {SUP} and {C)
uses and activities are required to comply appear in Article 4 {Supplemental Use
Regulations).

8-102.2 Principal Permitted Uses (FP) :
Principal permitted uses are permitted as a matter of right within the district
indicated, subject to the general requirements established for the district wherein
the use is located.

8-102.3 Use Permitted with_Supplemental Provisions (SUFP)
A use permitted with supplementatl provisions is an activily, use or structure which

is permitted subject to a finding by the City Planner that the specific standards
indicated for the use in question have been met. Only those uses and structures
so indicafed in Arficle 4, Section 4-101, may be dllowed within the districts
indicated.

8-102.4 Conditional Uses {C)

A conditional use is an activity, use, or structure which may require large land
area, have unique operating, traffic generating or other characteristics that may
tend to dominate or adversely affect the area more than do other uses permitted
within the same zone district. Because the impacts of these uses cannot be
satistactorily predetermined for every possible location within a zone district, these
land uses are permitted only upon approval by the Board of Zoning Appedls.
Fach conditional use is subject to a finding by the Board of Zoning Appeals that
the specific standards indicated for the use in question have been met. Only
those uses and structures so indicated in the following sections, may be allowed
within the districts indicated.

8-102.5 Accessory Uses

In addition to the principal activities expressed above, each aclivity type shall be
deemed to include activities customarily associated with, and appropriate,
incidental, and subordinate to the principal octivity when such accessory activity
is located on the same zone lot as such principal activity and meets the further
conditions set forth in Article 4, Section 4-102. Accessory uses designated within

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arlicle 8—Page 3



each zone district sections, as follows, are permitted as a matter of right and no
permit is required to conduct the activity in question. Those accessory uses
designated with the letters “ASP” do require a permit obtained from the Fairview
City Planning Department. Permits for accessory uses designated “"ASP" shall be
issued upon demonstration that the activity in question meets the requirements
established for such activity Arficle 4, Section 4-102.

8-102.6 Temporary Uses
The temporary uses and struciures specified in Ardicle 4, Section 4-103, as

permissible within commercial districts may be permitted for the limited time
veriods indicated for each such use or activity.

8-102.7 Uses Not Permitied

Any uses or structures not allowable as permitfed uses, conditional uses,
temporary uses or accessory uses dre prohibited within the various commercidl
districts.

8-103: BULK REGULATIONS — APPLICABLE TO ALL COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS

8-103.1 General

The minimum lot dimensions, maximum lot coverage, minimum front, rear, interior
and street side yards, maximum building heights and minimum separation
between buildings on the same zone lot within any base commercial district shall
be as listed in Section 8-104 through Section 8-111. For certain uses, alternative
bulk regulations may be specified in this section or other sections of this zoning
ordinance. Bulk regulations for Planned Overlay Districts shall be as specified in
Article 10.

8-103.2 Lol Dimensions

No lot shall be created and no building permit or zoning approval shall be issued
for any lot that does not meet the minimum dimensional requirements as listed in
Secfions 8-104 through Section 8-111, unless otherwise provided as part of a
Planned Unit Development (PUD).

1. Reduction in Lot Area Prohibited
No lot, even though it may consist of one (1} or more adjacent lots of
record, shall be reduced in area so that yards, lof width, building areq, or
other requirements of the zoning ordinance are not maintained. This section
shall not apply when a portion of a lot is acquired for a public purpose.

Fairview, Tennessee ~ Zoning Crdinance
Arficle 8- Page 4



2. Lot Frontage

All Tots shall have a minimum of fifty {50} feet of frontage on a publicly
dedicated and maintained sfreet, except that lots located along the
terminus of a cul-de-sac shall have a minimum of thirty-five [35) feet of
frontage. Within the Town Center Overlay District, minimum required lot
frontages shall be established by the governing Master Plan as opproved
by the Board of Commissioners. {Amended by Ordinance 509, August 16,
2001}

8-103.3 Height Regulations

1. General Exception to Height Regulglions
The height limitation contained in the district regulations does not apply to
spires, belfries, cupolas, radio towers, water tanks, ventilators, chimneys, or
other appurtenances usually required fo be placed above the roof level
and not intended for human occupancy.

8-103.4 Yard Reguilations

1. Permitted QObstructions in Required Yards
In all commercial districts, the following shall not be considered obstructions
when located within a required yard except and comply with the provisions
of Section 8-103.5{Obstructions Prohibited at Street Intersections).

A. Arbors and frellises.

B. Awnings or canopies projecting from a building wall over a required yard
not more than six [6) feet, and having no supports other than provided
by the wall or its infegral parfs.

C. Chimneys projecting not more than three (3} feet into, and not
exceeding two (2} percent of the areq, of the required yard.

D. Driveways subject to other specific provisions of this ordinance related
directly thereto.

E. Faves, gutters, or down spouts, projecting into or over required yards not
more than twenty-four {24) inches or twenty [20) percent of the widih of
such yard, whichever is the lesser distance.

F. Fire escapes or staircase, the riser area of which shall be at least fifty (50}
percent open, and whose vertical projection downward onto a required
yard does not exceed thirty (30] percent of the area of such yard.

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 —Page 5



G. Flagpoles, having only one structural ground member,

H.

[,

Fountains.

Mailboxes.

Open terraces, including natural ptant landscaping.
Retaining walls.

Sculpture or other similar objects of art.

. Street fumniture such s, but not limited to benches, drinking fountains,

trash receptacles, ash trays, light standards, or directional signs.

Vents necessary for use of fallout shelters constructed below grade of
such yards, but excluding all other parts of such shelters,

. Walls or fences not exceeding six {4) feet in height measured from finish

grade level at any point along the length of, and on any side of, such
walls or fences, and not roofed or structurally part of a building.

. Measurement of Yard Width

In all commercial districts, the width or depth of a yard shall be measured
perpendicular to ot lines.

. Accessory Off-Street Parking in Required Yards

Accessory off-street parking may be permitted within the required yards of
commercial districts only to the extent set forth below. Within any area
where permitted such parking areas shall: Be properly maintained and
have no obstructions thereon, except as permitted by Subpart 1, of this
saction, and shall not obsfiuct the visibility triangle as required by
Subsection 8-103.5.

A,

Accessory Off-Street Parking in Reguired Front Yards {Amended by
Ordinance 509, August 16, 2001}

Within any commercial district not located within the Main Street Mixed
Use Sub-district of the Town Center Overlay District, permitted or required
accessory off-street parking may be permitted within ten {10} feet of the
front lot line. Within the Madin Street Mixed Use Sub-disirict of the Town
Overlay District, off-street parking shail be prohibited between the

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 6



building and the front lot line. Off-street parking creas in that sub-district
shall be located either to the rear or side of buildings.

B. Accessory Off-Street Parking in Side Yards

In all commercial districts, accessory off-street parking may be located
within eight (8) feet of any side lot line, except when such yard is
adjacent to aresidential district. {See Subpart 5, of this section, for special
provisions applicable along residential district boundciries).

C. Accessory Off-Street Parking _and Loading in Rear Yards {Amended by
Ordinance 509, August 146, 2001}

Within the Town Center Overlay District, parking and loading areas may
occur back o the rear property line if so authorized by the enacting PUD.
Except as provided by Subpart 6, of this section, in all commercial
districts, accessory off-street parking or loading may be located within
ten {10} feet of any rear lot line except when such yard is adjacent to a
residential district. (See Subpart é, of this section, for special provisions
applicable along residential district boundaries).

4, Special Provisions for Through Lots
In all commercial districts no rear yard is required for a through lot. In lieu
thereof a front yard shall be required for each frontage.

5. Special Provisions Applying to Required Yards and Building Setbacks Along
District Boundaries Coincident with Side or Rear Lof Line of Zone Lot in any
Rasidential District {Amended by Crdinance 509, August 146, 2001)

in all commercial districts, except those associated with a corresponding
Planned Overlay District located within the Town Center Overlay District:
and along such portion of the boundary of a commercial district which
coincides with a lot line of a zone lot in any residential district the {ollowing
yard provisions shall apply. The open space may be utilized for parking.
Within the Town Center Overlay District, minimum required lot frontages
shall be established by the governing Master Plan as opproved by the
Board of Commissioners.

A. Special Front Setback
Regardless of the front yard provisions established for any commercial
district, no building located on any zone lot adjacent fo any residential
district shalt not extend closer to the street than the average of the
distances of the buildings located within one hundred (100) feet of the
lot whereon the commercial activity is located; provided that no

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8 -Page 7



building shall be required to setback more than twice the minimum front
yard applicable within the commercial district.

Special Side and Rear Yards

Along dll portions of the boundary of any commercial zone lot where
such lot abuts or is configuous to any residential zone lof without an
infervening public street, an open area, unobstructed from the ground
to the sky, shall be provided within the commercial district, said area
being al least twenty {20} feet in width or depth. Such open area shall
not be used for accessory off-street parking, or accessory off-street
loading, or for storage or processing of any kind.

6. Special Provisions for Party Walls

in commercial districts, side orrear yard requirements may be waived along
the side or rear adjacent to another commercially zoned lot if the following
conditions are met:

A.

Al all points of attachment adjoining buildings shall be separated from
each other by a four (4} hour wdll in accordance with the cumrently
adopted Building Code and Fre Code.

A party wall may bisect the dividing line of two (2} adjacent lots so that
one-half {1/2) of the party wall is located on each of the properties,
provided that the owners of each property sign a covenant running with
the land and granfing an easement on the property to the owners of
the adjoining property for the purpose of maintaining, reconstructing or
protecting the party wall.

In the event of the construction of o building on the lot line, the wall
along the lotf line, if it is not constructed as a party wall between two (2)
buildings, shall be built in such a manner that it will meet all requirements
of Subpart A, of this section, without regard to the wall or building on the
adjoining property.

. No wall constructed within fen {10) feet of a property line shall have less

than a four (4] hour fire rafing and shall have such additional ratings s
required by the curently adopted Building Code and Fire Code.

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8- Page 8



8-103.5 Obstruclions Prohibited at Street Intersections (Amended by Ordinance 509,
August 16, 2001}

On a cormer lot, no fence, wall, hedge, or other planting or structure that
will materially obstruct vision between a height of two and one-halt (2 1/2]
feet and ten (10) feet above the center line grades of the intersecting
streets shall be erected, placed, or maintained within the fiangular area
formed by the street lines at such corner lots and a siraight line joining
such street lines at points which are thirty-five (35) feet distance from the
intersection of the street lines and measured along said sireet lines. In case
of rounded street lines at the intersecting streets, such measurement shall
be made from the point of intersection of the tangents of the curve
consfituting the rounding. The above requirements shall not apply to
development located within the Town Center Overlay District wherein
setbacks from intersections shall be established by the governing Master
Plan, as approved by the Board of Commissioners.

8-103.6 Requirements for Fire Lanes (Amended by Ordinance 509. August 16, 2001

Unless specified by the City of Fairview and/or Infernationcl Fire Codes, afl
commercial buildings shall have fire lanes with a minimum width of fen
(10) feet and shall be located adjacent o the front and rear entrances
of alf buildings. Such fire lanes shall be positioned directly adjacent fo
emergency water faciliies designed for fire protection and shall be
paved with an all-weather surface capable of supporting the imposed
loads of fire apparatus. The required fire lanes shall not be obstructed in
any manner, including the parking of vehicles. installation of No Parking
signs or other appropriate nofice, or of approved obstructions inhibiting
parking, may be required and if instalied shall be maintained. The owner
or his representative of a building which is adjacent to the fire lane shall
be responsible for keeping the fire lane free of obstructions.

8-103.7 Reguirements for Sidewalks

Street sidewalks and on-site walks shall be provided for cenvenient, ADA
compliant, and safe access to all commercial buildings and amenities
from streefs, driveways, or parking areas and for convenient circulafion
ond access to alf facilifies.

Standards for Walkways
The following design standards for walkways shall apply within all
commercial developments.

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8-Page 9



A. Watkways, a minimum of six (4] feet in widih, shall be provided along
all public right- of- ways along the zoned lof lines and fo all buildings
and amenifies. At a minimum these walkways shall connect along all
public streets and from all street crossings fo the major points of
building entry.

B. Walkways shall be provided clong the full length of the building on
any side which provides building access to the public or where oublic
parking is available, to provide safe and comfortable pedestrian
access to the building.

C. All walkways within public right- of- ways- shall be built to Fairview
Street and Sidewalk Standards.

D. Internal walkway surfaces shall be designed to be visually attractive
and distinguishable from driving surfaces through use of durable, low
maintfenance materials such as pavers, bricks, or scored concrete to
enhance pedestian safety and comfort.

Sidewalk Requirement Varicnce

Where approved by the Planning Commission, o waiver of City required
sidewalks may be requested in circumstances where sidewalk
installation may not be reasonable, suitable or effective. Should a
waiver be granted, a payment in lieu of sidewalk construction shall be
remitted to the City's Sidewalk Maintenance, Repair, and Instailation
Fund. The valuation of any funds remitted to the City of Fairview shdll
not be less than 75% of the engineered construction costs, as
determined by current published average unit prices.

Falirview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Articte 8 - Page 10



8-104: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF CG - COMMERCIAL-GENERAL DISTRICTS

This district is designed to provide for a wide range of commercial uses concerned
with retail trade and consumer services; amusement and enfertainment
establishments; automotive and vehicular service establishments; fransient
sleeping accommodations; drive-in stores; eating and drinking places, financial
institutions: and offices. The uses in this district service ¢ broad market specirum
and, therefore, ease of automotive access is a requirement. However, it is not
intended that this district permit uses which generate large volumes of truck
traffic. Community facilities and utilities necessary to serve these disticts, or
necessary for the general community welfare are dlise permitted. Appropriate
open space between commercial and residential areas is required. This
classification is intended to recognize an existing undesirable development
pattern but not repeat or significantly expand the pattern beyond those areas
where such is already established.

1. Permitted Uses
A. Community Facilities Activities
i. Administrative Services
ii. Community Assembly
fii. Cultural and Recreational Facilities
iv. Educational Facilities
v. Essential Public Transport, Communication and Utility Services

B. Commercial Acliviiies
i. Automotive Parking
ii. Banking. Financidl, Insurance, and Real Estate Services
ii. Convenience Refail Sales and Services
iv., General Business and Communications
v. General Retail Trader
vi. Quidoor Material and Equipment Sales and Repair
vii. Professional Services — Medical
vill. Professional Services — Non-Medical
ix. Restaurant — Full Service
Xx. Restaurant - Fast Food
xi, Self-Service Storage
xii. Transient Habitation
xili. Warehousing, Goods, Transport, and Storage
xiv. Wholesale Sales

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 11



2. Uses Permitted with Supplemental Provisions {SUP)
A. Residential Activities
i, Multi-Family Dwelling {See Section 8-112 for Supplementdai
Regulations)

B. Community Facilities Activities
i. Child Care Facilities
ii. Health Care Facilities
ii. Religious Facilities
iv. Specidal Personal and Group Care Facilities

C. Commercial Activities
i. Animal Care and Vetferinary Services

3. Conditional Uses
A. Community Facilities Activities
i. Extensive Impact Facilifies
ii. Intermediate Impact Facilities
iii. Special Institutional Care Facilities

B, Commercial Activities
i, Automotive and Maiine Craft Sales, Service and Repair
i, Enterfainment and Amusement Services - Limited
jil. Group Assembly and Commercial Cuidoor Recreation

4. Accessory Uses
A. Permitied Uses
i. Accessory Storage
ii. Administrative Office
ii. Private Recreational Facilities

5. Bulk Regulations
A. Minimum Zone Lot Requirements
i. Area - 10,000 square feet

B. Maximum Lot Coverage - {As % of Total Lot Ared)
i. 50 percent

C. Maximum Impermeable Surface Ratio {As % of Total Lot Areq)
i. 80 percent

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8~ Page 12



D. Maximum Height
i. 35feet

E. Minimum Yard Requirements
i, Front Yard - 30 Feet
ii. Side Yard— 10 Feet
ii. Rear Yard - 20 Feet

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8 —Page 13



8-105: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF CI - COMMERCIAL-INTERCANGE DISTRICTS

This district is designed 1o provide adequate space at magjor freeway
interchanges for uses that are directly related to the needs of the motoring public.
Due to the extremely hazardous condition found at the k40/Highway 96,
Inferchange, it has been determined that the uses and activities permitted must
be carefully evaluated relative to fraffic generation and other site specific
characteristics, including access, that have o direct bearing on the hedith, safety
and welfare of the motoring public. Community facilities and ufilities necessary to
serve these districts, or necessary for the general ccmmunity welfare are also
permitted. Bulk limitations established for uses in these districts are designed to
recognize the market need of the uses and activities that are permitied.
Appropriate locations for this district are near major fransportation interchanges
in clustered development patterns and not patterns of striped commercial
development extending in a ceontinuous manner along major fraffic arteries.
{Amended by Ordinance No, 513, November 15, 2001}

I. Permitted Uses
A. Community Facilities Activities
i.  Adminisfrative Services
il. Community Assembly
iii. Cultural and Recreational Facilities
iv. Educational Facilities
v. Essential Public Transport, Communication and Ulility Services

B. Commercial Activities
i. Automotive Parking
ii. Banking, Financial, Insurance, and Real Estate Services
ii. Convenience Retail Sales and Services
iv. General Business and Communications
v. General Retail Trader
vi. Restaurant — Full Service
vi. Restaurant - Fast Food
viii. Transient Habitation

2. Uses Permitted with Supplemental Provisions {SUP)
A. Community Facilities Aclivities
i. Health Care Facilities

B, Commercial Activities
i. Animal Care and Veterinary Services

Fairview, Tennessee - Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 14



3. Conditional Uses
A. Community Facilities Activities
i. Child Care Facilities
ii. Extensive Impact Facilities
ji. Intermediate Impact Faciiifies
iv. Religicus Facilifies
v. Special Institutional Care Facilities
vi. Special Personal and Group Care Facilities
vil. Waste Disposal Operations

B. Commercial Activities
i. Automotive and Marine Craft Sales, Service and Repair
i. Entertainment and Amusement Services — Limited

4, Accessory Uses
A. Permitted Uses
i. Accessory Storage
i, Administrative Office
ii. Private Recreational Facilifies

5. Bulk Regulations
A. Minimum Zone Lot Requwemenis
i. Area - 10,000 square feet

B. Maximum Lot Coverage - {As % of Total Lot Areqg)
i. 50 percent

C. Maximum Impermeable Surface Ratio [As % of Totdl Lot Ared)
i. 80 percent

D. Maximum Height
i. 35feet

E. Minimum Yard Requirements
i, Front Yard — 30 Feet
ii. Side Yard - 10 Feet
ii. Rear Yard — 20 Feet

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 15



8-106: INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8 — Page 16



8-107: PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF CMU, COMMERCIAL - MIXED USE DISTRICTS

These districts are designed primarily to provide sufficient space in appropricte
locafions for establishments and uses engaged in wholesale trade, the
warehousing of a wide variety of products or materials, manufacturing processes
having the highest performance standards and the least objectionable
characteristics, and services ancillary thereto. As these districts tend to generate
relatively large volumes of heavy vehicular traffic and have other characteristics
detrimental to residential environments, their locations are removed from the
proximity of residential districts insofar as possible. Where these disfricts must
necessarily abut residential areas, requirements designed fo lessen incompatible
features of commercial development are stipulated. In addition, a selection of
consumer retail trade establisnments, consumer service uses, and community
tacilities and ufilities, considered necessary to service the principal uses in these
districts or necessary for the general community welfare, are permitted,

1. Permitted Uses
A. Community Focilities Activities
i. Administrative Services
ii. Community Assembly
ii. Cultural and Recreational Facilities
iv. Educationdal Facilities
v. Essential Public Transport, Communication and Utility Services

B. Commercigl Aciivilies
i. Automotive Parking
i. Banking. Financial, insurance, and Real Estate Services
ii. Convenience Retail Sales and Services
iv. General Business and Communications
v. General Reiail Trader
vi. Outdoor Material and Equipment Sales and Repair
vii. Professional Services — Medical
viii. Professional Services — Non-Medical
ix, Restaurant - Full Service
X. Restaurant — Fast Food
xi. Self-Service Storage
xi. Transient Habitation
xiii. Warehousing, Goods, Transport, and Storage
xiv. Wholescale Sales

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8 - Page 17



2. Uses Permitted with Supplemental Provisions (SUP)
A. Community Facilities Activities
i. Child Care Facilities
ii. Health Care Facllities
ii. Religious Facilities
iv. Special Personal and Group Care Facilifies

B. Commercial Activities
i. Animal Care and Veterinary Services

C. Manufacturing Activifies
i. Manufacturing-Limited

3. Conditional Uses
A. Community Facilities Activities
i. Extensive impact Facilities
i. Intermediate Impact Facilities
i, Special Institutional Care Facilities

B. Commercial Aclivities
i. Automotive and Marine Craft Sales, Service and Repair
ii. Entertginment and Amusement Services — Limited
ii. Group Assembly and Commercial Outdoor Recreation

4. Accessory Uses
A. Parmitted Uses
i. Accessory Storage
i. Administrative Office
ii. Private Recreationdl Facilities

5. Bulk Regulations
A. Minimum Zone Lot Requirements
i. Area - 10,000 square feet

B. Maximum Lot Coverage - [As % of Total Lot Area)
i. 50 percent

C. Maximum Impermeable Sutface Ratio (As % of Total Lot Areaq)
i. 80 percent

D. Maximum Height
i. 35feet

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 ~ Page 18



E. Minimum Yard Requirements
i. Front Yard — 30 Feel
i, Side Yord — 10 Feet
iii. Rear Yard - 20 Feet

Fairview, Tennessee — Zening Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 19



8-108: INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8 -~ Page 20



8-109: INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8 - Page 21



8-110: PURPQOSES AND INTENTS OF OG, OFFICE GENERAL DISTRICTS

These districts are designed to provide suitable areas for medium to large scale
office and communily service facilities within free standing structures or mutti-
building complexes located along major arterial streels, at major intersections,
and within the Town Center Overlay District, particularly the Government Core
sub-district. This disfrict is designhed to permit either single or mixed-occupancy
facilities at a range of infensities with building types generally comparable to the
scale and bulk of high density multi-family structures. This district is infended to
permit a broad range of administration service, community assembly,
educational, health care, religious assembly, banking, financial, insurance and
real estate service activities, along with a limited range of office-related general
business and communication services.

1. Permitted Uses
A. Community Facllities Activities
i, Administrative Services
i. Community Assembly
iii. Educational Facilities
iv. Essential Public Transport, Communication and Utility Services

B. Commercial Activities
i. Banking, Financial, Insurance, and Rea! Estate Services
i. Professional Services - Medical
ii. Professional Services — Non-Medical

2. Uses Permitted with Supplementai Provisions {SUP)
A. Community Facilities Activities
i, Child Care Facilifies

3. Conditional Uses
A. Community Facilities Activities
i. Cultural and Recreational Facilities
ii. Health Care Facilities
ji. Intermediate impact Facilities
iv. Religious Facilifies
v. Special Personal and Group Care Facilifies

4, Accessory Uses
A. Accessory Uses With Supplemental Regulations
i. Accessory Day Care
ii. Fmployee Cateferia

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 —Page 22



5. Bulk Reguldtions
A. Minimum Zone Lot Requirements

i, The Office General {OG) Zone District Does Not Have A
Minimum Lot Size.

3. Maximum Lot Coverage - [As % of Totdl Lot Areq)
i. 40 percent

C. Maximum Impermeabile Surface Ratio {As % of Total Lot Arect)
i. 75 percent

D. Maximum Height
i. 45 feet — A maximum of three (3] stories in height.

E. Minimum Yard Requirements
i. Front Yard — 30 Feet
ii. Side Yard - 10 Feet
ii. Rear Yard —20 Feet

4. OG Zone District Requirements in the Town Center Overlay
A. Front, Side, and Rear Yard requirements for the Office General (OC)
sone district, when located within the Town Center Overlay District,
shall be established as part of a Planned Overay District that is
approved by the Board of Commissioners.

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Arficle 8 - Page 23



8-111; PURPOSES AND INTENTS OF MSMU, MAIN STREET MIXED USE DISTRICT

This district is designed to provide for the complete integration of commercial
retail and consumer service, financial and professional office, amusement, eating
and drinking establishments, and higher intensity residential uses within the Main
Street Mixed Use sub-district of the Town Center Overlay District. It is the clear
intention that multiple land uses be integrated into mixed use structures that are
designed to o pedestrian scale and oriented direcily fo the sitreet. The
segregation of uses, while permitted, is fo be discouraged in favor of structures
designed for retail, consumer service, restaurants and other compard ble activities
iocated at the street level, with office and residential uses located on the second
and third stories of structures.

The building setback, bulk and design standards for this district are intended 1o
create an attractive, active and engaging street environment for the use and
convenience of the pedestrian. Buildings are intended to be built generally to the
sidewalk line along the maijority of a block face. Building facades oriented to the
street should be designed to o high architectural standard, with sensitive
arficulation of walls, an abundance of {clear} glass area and easily identifiable
main enfrances oriented to the street. Service areas and leading docks should be
oriented away from the street and to the greatest exient possible, screened from
public view. Drive-through facilities should be located to the side or rear of
buildings and not towards the public street. Sidewalks widths along storefronts
should be of sufiicient width to encourage outdoor activities and pedestrian
interaction, and should contain streset trees and high quality street furniture such
benches, trash receptacles and bicycle stands of comparable character and
guality.

It is the expressed intention of this district to discourage on-site vehicular parking
lots located between the street and the building, and to emphasize the careful
placement and arrangement of joint-use parking lots oriented to the rear or side
of buildings. The parking requirements associated with uses located within this
urban district may be lower than comparable uses located in suburban setfing
given the availability of on-street parking, the close proximity of residential
neighborhoods and the emphasis on pedestricn and bicycle mobility in lieu of the
aufomaobile.

1. Permitied Uses
A. Residential Activities
i. Multi-Family Dwelling

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 24



B. Community Facilifies Aclivities
i. Administrative Services
ii. Child Care Facilities
fi. Community Assembly
iv. Educationa! Facilities
v. Essential Public Transport, Communication and Utility Services
vi. Religious Facilities

C. Commercial Activities

i. Automotive Parking
ii. Banking, Financial, Insurance, and Real Estaie Services
iii. Convenience Retail Sales and Services

iv. General Business and Communications

v. Professiona! Services — Medical

vi. Professional Services — Non-Medical

vii. Restaurant, Full Service

viil. Transient Habitation

2. Uses Permitted with Supplemental Provisions (SUF)
A. Commercial Activities
i. General Retail Trader

3. Conditional Uses
A. Community Facilities Activities
i. Cultural and Recreational Facilities
ii. Intermediate Impact Facilities

B. Commercial Activilies
i, Entertainment and Amusement Services — Limited

4. Accesscry Uses
A. Permitted Uses
i. Accessory Storage
ii. Administrative Office
ii. Private Recreational Facilities
iv. Residential Occupancy

B. Accessory Uses With Supplementdl Reguiations
i. Production for Retail Sale

Fairview, Tennessee — 7oning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 25



5. Bulk Regulations

A. Minimum Zone Lot Requirements

i The Main Street Mixed-Use Zone District Does Not Have A
Minimum Lot Size.

B. Maximum Lot Coverage - {As % of Total Lot Areq)

i. 70 percent

C. Maximum Impermedable Surface Ratio {As % of Total Lot Ared)

i, 90 percent

D. Maximum Height

i. 45 feet— A maximum of three {3} stories in height.

E. Minimum Yard Requiremenis

i. Front Yard -0 Feet
ii. Side Yard -0 Feet
ii. RearYard -0 Feet

6. Building Setback, Bulk and Facade Standards for the Main Street Mixed Use

District [Added by Ordinance 50%, August 16, 2001)

The special design provisions set forth herein are intended to create an
atiractive, safe and pedestrian oriented Main Street Mixed Use (MSMU)
area within the Town Center.

A. Design Criteria

Front Yard Setbacks

Buildings built to the front property line are strongly encouraged.
Front building walls shall be located no more than fifteen (15) feet

from the front property line.

Street Wall as a Percentage of Lot Frontage

Buildings built to the front sidewalk line shall be the predominant
character of the Main Street Mixed Use area. A minimum of fitty {50)
percent of the each lot frontage shall be comprised of building wall
built up to or within fiffeen (15} feet of the front property line.

Building Heights at the Sireet Line

Buildings heights shall not exceed three (3} stories: the maximum
street facade elevation shall be forty-five (45) feet as measured from
the finished sidewalk grade to the top of wall {including parapets].

Fairview, Tennessee — 7oning Ordinance
Arficle 8 - Page 26



Street Wall Glazing

A minimum of fifty (50} percent and a maximum of eighty-five (85)
percent of a street facing building facade shall be comprised of
transparent glass area. Ground floor store levels should provide
prominent display windows easily viewed from the sidewalk. Blank
walls oriented to the street shall not exceed fifty (50) feet in length.

Sireet Facade Design

Building designs that provide an attractive appeadrance and an
interactive relationship with the sidewalk shall be required.
Encouraged are facade designs that promote outdoor activity and
contain interesting architectural features such as awnings, columns,
porches, decorative stoops, courtyards, terraces and upper story
balconies. Building facades comprised predominanily of natural
looking materials such a brick, stone, stucco and painted wood are
encouraged in lieu of synthetic materials such a vinyl coated
elements and aluminum siding.

i. Sidewadlk Standards
Sidewalks located belween the street curb line and a front
building wall should be a minimum of eight (8) feet in widih. A
minimum clearance of seven (7) feet shall be maintained at ali
times along the frontage of the sidewalk and to and from the
main doorway(s) into business establishments,

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 27



8-112: SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGN PROVISIONS

8-112.1 Density, Height, Lot Size, and Open Space Requirements Applicable to

Residential Activities

The provisions of this section apply to any residential building or mixed building
located on any zone lot or portion of a zone lot in any commercial district. The
following requirements shall not apply to development located within the Town
Center Overlay District wherein requirement shall be established by the governing
Master Plan, as approved by the Board of Commissioners. {Amended by
Ordinance 509, August 16, 2001)

1.

Provisions Applicable to Residential Buildings

Within those commercial districts where residential uses are permitted, the
height, density, bulk, lot size and open space provisions applicable to the
RM-8 District (See Section 6-114] shall apply fo all residential buildings
located upon any zone lot or portion of a zone lot. The supplemental
provisions appedaring in Arficle 7, Section 7-101.1 — Development Standards
for Multi-Family Dwellings, shall apply to all residential buildings located in
any commerciai district.

Provisions Applicable to Mixed Buildings
The provisions appearing below shall apply to all vertical and/or horizonial
mixed buildings where such are permitted within any commercial district.

A. Maximum Bulk Permiited
For any mixed building permitted within any commercial district the
height, density, bulk, lot size and open space provisions applicable to
the RM-8, District {See Section 6-114} shall apply.

B. Calculation of Residential Density Permitted in Mixed Use Buildings
To determine the residential density permitted within any mixed use
building, the following procedure shall be utilized.

i.  The zone lot upon which the mixed use building is located will be
apportioned as 1o ifs nonresidential-residential  components,
(Example: If twenty-five (25} percent of a mixed building is to be
utilized for commercial purposes and seventy-five [75) percent of
the lot area will be used in calculating the residential density
permitted).

i. The residenfial density permitted will then be calculated in a like

manner as for any zone lot located within said disfrict.

Eairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 28



i.  In no instance, however, shall the fotal building bulk permitted be
increased beyond that established for the district within which the
mixed building is located.

8-112.2 Development Standards for Commercial Complexes

The provisions of this section are applicable to all commercial complexes, as
defined by this Ordinance (see Arficle 2, Section 2-1 02). The intent of this provision
is to assure coordination of certain critical design elements within commercial
compiexes by Planning Commission review of the master development plan
required for all such development by Arficle 17, Section 17-103.2. Provided,
however, that in any instance where this use is located within a planned unit
development this requirement may be fulfilled by submission of the plans required
by that section.

1. Parking and Accgess Conirol
The parking and access control provisions contained in Article 11, Secfion
11-102.8, “Joint Parking Facilities”, shall apply within ail commercial
complexes.

2. Design Standards
The following design standards shall apply to all site development plans

submitted for property located within any commercial complex.

A. Site features such as landscaping, site fences, walls, dumpsters and
recycle containers shall be coordinated into a unitary design and shall
otherwise comply with all provisions of found within the Fairview Design
Review Manudadl.

B. Buildings shall incorporate similar design elements, such as surface
materials, color, roof freatment, windows and doors on all sides of the
building(s) to achieve a unity of design. The sides of a building that face
a public street shall include elements such as windows, doors, color,
texture, landscaping and wall freatment to provide visuall inferesf and
prevent development of a long continuous blank wall.

C. All buildings within a multi-building complex shall achieve a unity of
design by use of similar architectural elements, such as roof form, exterior
building materials, colors and window pattem.

D. Site drainage shall be designed to incorporate all buildings and

structures included with the total development site.

Fairview, Tennessee - Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 29



E. A "Common Sighage Plan” meeting the standards established in Arlicle
12, Section 12-110, shall be required for all commercial complexes.

3. Standards for Internal Walkwdiys
The following design standards for internal walkways shall apply within all
commercial complexes.

A. Internal walkway surfaces shall be designed fo be visually attractive and
distinguishable from driving surfaces through use of durable, low
mainfenance materials such as pavers, bricks, or scored concrete to
enhance pedestrian safety and comfort.

Fairview, Tennessee — Zoning Ordinance
Article 8 - Page 30



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-40

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, TO
THE ZONING ORDINANCE AS IT PERTAINS TO ARTICLE XVII
“ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT”, SECTION 17-103 “REQUIRED
PLANS”, SUBSECTIONS 17-103.8 “BONDING OF SITE IMPROVEMENTS”
and 17-103.9 “MAINTENANCE BONDS”.

WHEREAS, the City of Fairview Planning Commission recommends to the City
of Fairview Board of Commissioners to amend current provisions of the zoning
ordinance as they pertain to plans and permits in order to best serve the citizens
of Fairview, and

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS,

The Fairview, Tennessee Zoning Articles, Article XVII “Administration and
Enforcement”, Section 17-103 “Required Plans”, Subsections 17-103.8 “Bonding
of Site Improvements” And 17-103.9 “Maintenance Bonds, hereby removes and
replaces the current regulations to read as attached:

SEE ATTACHED ARTICLE 17: SECTIONS 103.8, 103.9, AND 103.10

The remaining sections of this Article and Section remain unchanged by this
Ordinance.

MAYOR

CITY RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

Passed First Reading D@C Ember 14 : ZOH

Passed Second Reading




17-103.8 Bonding of Site Grading

1. Site Stabilization
cror to the issuance of any grading permit for development covered by
any site plan or grading plan submitted in accordance with this ordinance,
an applicant shall be required to provide to the City a Site Reclamation
Bond.

2. Site Reclamgtion Bond
The City, shall require the submittal of a site stabilization bond prior tc
issuance of a grading permit in order to ensure thal the stormwater
practices are installed by the permit holder as required by the approved
site or grading plan. The amount of the installation performance surety
shall be in the amount of one hundred twenty-five {125) percent of the
total estimated construction cost of the structural BMPs approved under
the permit plus any reasonably foreseeable additional related costs, e.9.,
for damages or enforcement. The performance surety shall contain
forfeiture provisions for failure to complete work specified in the site or
grading plan. The applicant shall provide an itemized construction cost
esfimate complete with unit prices which shall be subject to acceptance,
amendment or rejection by the City. Alternatively, an estimate will be
prepared by the City Engineer in the armount of one hundred twenty-five
(125) percent of the estimate of cost fo assure completion of the work.

The performance surety shall be released in full only upon submission of as-
built plans and written certification by a registered professional engineer
licensed to practice in Tennessee that the structural BMPs have been
installed in accordance with the City approved plan and other
applicable provisions of this ordinance. The City will make a final
inspection of the structural BMPs to review for compliance with the
approved plan and the provisions of this ordinance.

3. Bonding Obligee

The site reclamation bond shall name the City of Fairview as obligees and
shall be satisfactory to the City Attorney as to form, sufficiency and manner
of execution. The performance bond shall remain in force in its full-face
amount until improvements are completed.

4. Surety
A site stabllization bond shall be secured by o surety bond, irevocable

lefter of credit, escrow account or other surety deemed adequate by the
city.



The beneficiary of the surety shall be the Planning Commission and/or the
City of Fairview. if a surety bond is used, then the guarantor of the debt shall
have a commercial rating of not lower than "A" as designated by the AM.
Best and Company or other similar corporate rating service acceptable to
the Planning Commission, If an imevocable letter of credit is used as surety,
then the bank or other financial institution issuing the letter of credit shall
have fotal capital and unrestricted surplus of not less than fwenty million
doliars [$20,000,000). The bank or other financial institution shall allow the
letter of credit to be presented for collection at a place physically located
within the boundaries of Williamson County, Tennessee.

5. Relegse of Site Reclamation Bond and Surety
The site reclamation bond, and the surety securing it, may be released by
the City after a final site stabilization inspection has been performed and
approved by the City. I shall be the responsibility of the permit holder o
contact the City for inspection scheduling.

6. Appedl to the Fairview Municipal Planning Commission
The applicant may, upon disapproval of a request for release of a bond,
appeal the decision of the City staff to the Planning Commission. The
appeal shall be filed within ten (10} days of the adverse decision and shall
be set for hearing on the next available agenda of the Planning
Commission.

7. Failure to Complete Improvements
Where a sile reclamation bond has been posted, and required
improvements have not been installed within the terms of the bond, then
the City may declare the bond to be in defaulf and authorize the caling of
the bond and surety and the completion of the improvements under the
supervision of the City departments.

17-103.9 Bonding of Site improvements

1. Completion of Improvements
Prior to the issuance of any use and occupancy permit for developments
covered by any site plan or grading plan submiited in accordance with this
ordinance, an applicant shall be required fo compiete all site
improvements indicated on the approved plan.

2. Perfcrmance Bond
When use and occupancy is requested before completion of site
improvements, a performance bond shall be provided to the City. A
temporary use and occupancy permit may be issued in the alternative,
upon posting an acceptable performance bond to insure the construction,




installation and/or dedication of dli remaining public and private
improvements and landscaping. The performance bond shall also secure
site improvements and private access improvements required pursuant to
this ordinance, including necessary offsite  improvements. The
performance bond shall be in the amount of cne hundred twenty-five (125)
percent of the total estimated construction cost. The applicant shail
provide an itemized construction cost estimate, complete with unit prices
which shall be subject to acceptance, amendment or rejection by the City.
Alfernatively, an estimate will be prepared by the City Engineer in the
amount of one hundred twenty-five {125) percent of the estimate of cost
to assure completion of the work. Posting of an acceptable performance
bond shall constitute prior permission for the propetly designated parties to
enter upon said property to complete these improvements.

. Bonding Periad - Obligee

The period within which required improvements shall be compileted shallbe
specified by the Planning Commission, incorporated in the performance
bond, and shall not exceed one {1} year from the date of approval of any
Temporary Use and Occupancy Permit.

The performance bond shall name the Planning Commission and/or the
city as obligees and shall be safisfactory fo the City Attormey as to form,
sufficiency and manner of execution. The performonce bond shall remain
in force in its full face amount until improvements are completed.

. Surety
A performance bond shall be secured by a surety bond, irevocable letter

of credit, escrow account or other surety deemed adequate by the city.

The beneficiary of the surety shall be the Planning Commission and/or the
City of Fairview. If a surety bond is used, then the guarantor of the debt shall
have a commercial rating of not lower than "A" as designated by the AM.
Rest and Company or other similar corporate rating service acceptable fo
the Planning Commission. If an imevocable letter of credit is used as surety,
then the bank or other financial institution issuing the letter of credit shall
have total capital and unrestricted surplus of not less than twenty million
dollars {$20,000,000). The bank or other financial insfitution shail allow the
letter of credit to be presented for collection at a place physically located
within the boundaries of Wiliamson County, Tennessee.

. Release of Performance Bond and Surety
The performance bond, and the surely securing it, may be released by the
City Planner upon completion of the site improvements and landscaping.




A. A request for release of the performance bond shall be made by the
applicant in the form cf a letter 1o the City Planner requesting release
of the performance bond, including d written statement from the
engineer employed by the applicant stating that the improvements
have been installed in accordance with the plans and specifications
approved by the city departments.

B. All costs incurred in connection with a request for release of the surety
or of the performance bond (that s, engineering, inspection fees, legal
fees, efc.) shall be borne by the applicant, regardiess of whether his
request is ultimately granted. No bond shall be released until the City
Planner certifies that all fees have been paid.

6. Appedal to the Fairview Municipal Planhing Commission

The applicant may, upon disapprovadl of a request for release of a bond,
appeal the decision of the City Planner to the Planning Commission, The
appeal shall be filed within ten {10) days of the adverse decision and shall
be set for hearing on the next available agenda of the Planning
Commission.

7. Failure to Complete Improvements

Where a performance bond has been posied, and required improvements
have not been instalied within the terms of the performance bond, then
the City may declare the bond to bein default and authorize the calling of
the bond and surety and the completion of the improvements under the
supervision of the city departments.

17-103.10 Bonding of Site Maintenance

1.

1.

Completion of Improvementis

Prior to the issuance of any permeant use and occupancy permit for
developments covered by any site plan or grading plan submitted in
accordance with this ordinance, an applicant shall be required to
complete all site improvements indicated on the approved plan. At
completion, all sife improvements shall be documented in “as-built”
drawings, inspected by the City and a maintenance bond be set and
posted.

Basic Requirement

Maintenance bonds shall be required for the purpose of ensuring:

A. Landscape material which is installed to meet the reguirements of this
ordinance does not die or significantly deteriorate for a period of one
(1) year.




B. Off-site improvements are in proper working order and maintained in
an acceptable manner to the City for a period of one (1) year.

C. All public infrastructure and right of ways are maintained in an
acceptable manner to the City for a period of one (1) year.

D. All storm water infrastructure is in proper working order and
maintained in an acceptable manner to the City for a period of one
(1) year.

2. Maintenance Bond Amount
The maintenance bond shall be calculated by the City Engineer.

3. Bonding Period - Obligee
The period of the bond shalt be one (1} year from the date of approval of
any Permanent Use and Occupancy Permit.

The maintenance bond shall name the City of Fairview as obligee and shall
be satisfactory to the City Attorney as to form, sufficiency and manner of
execution.

4. Release of Maintenance Bond and Surety
The maintenance bond, and the surety securing it, may be released by the
City upon one (1) year of the site improvements and landscaping being
approved, and after a site inspection by the City.




ORDINANCE NO. 2019-41

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, TO
THE ZONING ORDINANCE AS IT PERTAINS TO ARTICLE XVII
“ADMINISTRATION AND ENFORCEMENT”, SECTION 17-102.2 “ZONING
PERMITS”, SUBSECTION 102.2 “GRADING PERMITS".

WHEREAS, the City of Fairview Planning Commission has recommended to the
City of Fairview Board of Commissioners to amend current provisions of the
zoning ordinance as they pertain to plans and permits in order to best serve the
citizens of Fairview, and

WHEREAS, the Fairview, Tennessee Zoning Articles, Article XVII
“Administration and Enforcement”, Section 17-102.2 “Zoning Permits”,
Subsection 102.2 “Grading Permits” and Subsection 102.3 “Site Utilization and
Reclamation Permits” and Subsection 102.4 “Foundation Permits, currently read
is as follows:

17-102.2 Grading Permits

In any instance where no building or construction activity is to take place
upon a site, a grading permit may be issued by the City Engineer,
provided that a tree inventory and protection plan meeting the
requirements for such set out in Article 2, Section 2-103 of the Fairview
Design Review Manual, has been approved and the applicant has
demonstrated that the use or activity will comply with all provisions of this
ordinance.

17-102.3 Site Utilization and Reclamation Permits

Site utilization and reclamation permits are required for any mining and
quarrying uses and for the removal or stripping of topsoil in excess of ten
thousand (10,000) square feet of land area. If the proposed land
disturbance exceeds an area of 10,000 square feet, the Owner shall
submit a site grading and drainage plan, irrespective of the volume of
soils to be disturbed, brought in, or removed from the site. Additionally, if
the proposal affects a smaller area, but changes the existing ground
elevation by three (3) feet or more, either up or down, or any excavation
or placement of fill material which would infringe upon a drainage way,
floodplain or wetland area as determined by the City Engineer, the Owner
shall submit a site grading and drainage plan. If a proposal does not meet
the above criteria, but alters the point at which natural drainage leaves
the Owner’s property, the Owner shall submit a site grading and drainage
plan.

For proposals in which grading is not proposed, but the impervious
surface area is increased by 10,000 square feet, the Owner shall submit a



site grading and drainage plan for the project. Typical instances include,
but are not limited to, building expansions of 10,000 square feet or more
or parking lot expansions of 10,000 square feet or more.

For proposals in established residential neighborhoods, commercial or
industrial site in which no grading is proposed, but which proposed to
remove trees, and the net balance of trees is reduced by more than 33
percent, the Owner shall submit a site plan.

Site grading and drainage plans shall be prepared by person licensed in
the State of Tennessee to prepare such plans, and shall be submitted to
the City of Fairview Planning and Code Department for review and
subsequent review by the Fairview Planning Commission.

This section expressly exempts excavation or fill for the purpose of
constructing a swimming pool, basement, garage, or similar use which is
deemed to be an accessory structure to a principal residential building or
minor grading three (3) feet or less in depth done for the purposes of
constructing a one (1) or two (2) family dwelling. Also exempt from this
requirement are proposals in developed residential lots that disturb less
than 10,000 square feet and do not change the existing ground elevation
by three (3) feet of more; typical residential and commercial landscaping
proposals; other similar applications and agricultural development within
the state of Tennessee's guidelines and regulations in regard to drainage
and stormwater runoff. The City Planner shall have authority to make
determinations regarding the applicability of this requirement to any given
project.

17-102.4 Foundation Permits

In any instance where building or construction activity is proposed to take
place upon a site, a building permit may be issued upon approval of a
grading plan (as specified in Section 17-103.3). Such permit may be
limited to preliminary site grading and construction of the foundation only.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW, TENNESSEE, AS FOLLOWS,
The Fairview, Tennessee Zoning Articles, Article XVII “Administration and
Enforcement”, Section 17-102.2 “Zoning Permits”, Subsection 102.2 “Grading
Permits” are hereby amended to read as follows:

17-102.2 Grading, Site Utilization, and Reclamation Permits

A. Required Permit and Site Plan Submission
Prior to building construction or site excavation activities taking place,
a Grading, Site Utilization, and Reclamation Permit and site plan shall
be required when meeting any of the following:




1)

2)

3)

Grading, site utilization and reclamation permits are required for any
removal, disturbance, or stripping of ten thousand (10,000) square feet
or more of land area. If the proposed land disturbance equals or
exceeds an area of 10,000 square feet, the Owner shall submit a site
plan, irrespective of the volume of soils to be disturbed, brought in, or
removed from the site. Additionally, if the proposal affects a smaller
area, but changes the existing ground elevation by three (3) feet or
more, either up or down, or any excavation or placement of fill material
which would infringe upon a drainage way, floodplain or wetland area
as determined by the City Engineer, the Owner shall submit a site plan.
If a proposal does not meet the above criteria, but alters the point at
which natural drainage leaves the Owner's property, the Owner shall
submit a site plan.

For proposals in which grading is not proposed, but the impervious
surface area is increased by 10,000 square feet, the Owner shall submit
a site plan far the project. Typical instances inciude, but are not limited
to, building expansions of 10,000 square feet or more or parking lot
expansions of 10,000 square feet or more.

For proposals in established residential neighborhoods, commercial or
industrial sites in which no grading is proposed, but which proposes to
remove trees with a diameter of six (6) inches measured four (4) feet
from the ground on any side, and the net balance of trees is reduced by
more than 33 percent, the Owner shall submit a site plan.

Site Plan Preparation
Site plans shall be prepared by a person(s) licensed in the State of

Tennessee to prepare such plans, and shall be submitted to the City of
Fairview for Planning/Engineering Staff review and subsequent review
by the Fairview Planning Commission.

Exempt Sites
This section expressly exempts excavation or fill for the purpose of

constructing a swimming pool, basement, garage, or similar use which
is deemed to be an accessory structure to a principal residential building
or minor grading less than three (3) feet in depth done for the purposes
of constructing a one (1) or two (2) family dwelling. Also exempt from
this requirement are proposals in developed residential lots that disturb
less than 10,000 square feet and do not change the existing ground
elevation by three (3) feet or more; typicai residential and commercial
landscaping proposals; other similar applications and agricultural
development within the state of Tennessee’s guidelines and regulations
in regard to drainage and stormwater runoff. City Planning/Engineering
Staff shaill have authority to make determinations regarding the
applicability of this requirement to any given project.



D. Grading, Site Utilization, and Reclamation Permit Application

Requirements

Permit applications and fees shall be submitted to the City for review,

provided:

1) The tree inventory and protection plan meet the requirements for
such set out in Article 2, Section 2-103 of the Fairview Design
Review Manual.

2) The applicant demonstrates that the use or activity will comply with
all provisions of this ordinance.

3) All Erosion Prevention and Sediment Control measures are
installed and maintained per the City approved construction plans
and in accordance with state and local requirements.

The remaining sections of this Article and Section remain unchanged by this
Ordinance.

MAYOR

CITY RECORDER

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

CITY ATTORNEY

Passed First Reading DCCCW\b %' |[7,. ?_pl‘{]

Passed Second Reading




ORDINANCE #2018-26

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY OF FAIRVIE
ORDINANCE BY CHANGING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FOR TAX MAP
043, PARCEL 23.00, CONSISTING OF 111 ACRES, LOCATED ON COX
PIKE, FROM A RS-40 (LOW-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL) ZONING DISTRICT
TO A R-20 PUD (MEDIUM-DENSITY RESIDENTIAL PLANNED UNIT
DEVELOPMENT) ZONING DISTRICT (141 PROPOSED LOTS).

WHEREAS, a request has been made by Tony Cavender to rezone property
located within the City of Fairview; and

WHEREAS, the City of Fairview Planning Commission, on November 20, 2018,
made a favorable recommendation to the Board of Commissioners that this request be
approved.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF FAIRVIEW BOARD
OFCOMMISSIONERS THAT:

SECTION 1. That the Zoning Ordinance be and is hereby amended by making certain
changes to the Official Zoning Map for the City of Fairview, by changing
the property identified as Tax Map 043, Parcel 23.00 from a RS-40
(Low-Density Residential) Zoning District to a R-20 PUD (Medium-
Density Residential Planned Unit Development) Zoning District. This
property consists of approximately 111 acres and is proposed to have
141 lots. Tony Cavender has submitted an application for the rezoning
of this parcel, which is attached to and made a part of this ordinance as
though copied herein,

SECTION 2. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that the Codes and Planning Department
is hereby authorized and directed, upon approval of this Ordinance, to
cause the change to be made on the Official Zoning Map, as set out in
Section 1 of this Ordinance, and to make notation thereon of reference
to the date of passage and approval offthis Ordinance.

[
SECTION 3. BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED, that this Ordinance take effect immediately
after its passage and such change be published in a newspaper of
general circulation, the welfare of the City of Fairview requiring it.



| = 7 i/
First Reading: \Jﬂtf\u& mj f)i 'Z-L’l&!

Public Hearing Held: \/ (ft?\'r qu'rﬂ ? i ?/Ullél

Second Reading:

Approved by the Board of Commissioners:

John Blade, Mayor

ATTEST:

Brandy Johnson, City Recorder

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney

Published inthe Fairview Observeron kj/)t,if\l ML["L{ 12—‘. 72 [)iﬂ









apEag 0 10N
depy uoneaof a8







W M 1Y WAk TR
] P I TV T

il

iliii%fi
§

s

sualn

il#

uriGEAS]
[EIEE =]

[E ]
ey Mg

4

|

TR i

HHELEEE

HEHsEtEDHERHE BB Eflﬁftii

S

E
HEE

3

HHH

i

!

|§lu‘m el

£1l]

e

iii#%ﬁﬂiﬂfli%iii“ims

!

£

B

g =]

sl a|aje}ii)

[ab]z}=

HE
|

=
3

e

i

+

AT
b

pac s o
| L]

e e
.

BIEENE

i SR 3 VA CTERM M

[abslalujutatelee]s ]l

TR

S T

T A
g L3IK TTH
LT

ity

i Fivil
uE-oi-




Ip1ed 107 [ooidAL

uswsol °n'd

i

A0 H

_I
|
_

Illlom *

L~

o

TEEN |
|
4

A

|

]

1

1 &

ool

=
MDA,

GL) &8




Ipyeq 107 [PoKdAL

juswsel n'd .omc_

Mod |_.

08

I Trsan |

| @ |
A, |
: [
Loy

SRLDA aun 197 LOGL—GL) BALDA

—_—

_..__.._..-._‘8...._..._







(305! b i Uy ey e 20

-l
KD HOMDOHAdY 3HY SHOWRDOT MMHEN

faianin m o

gl e R

AN

Wm..mu:.mm_? . TBEP0NIO] T PO poay Q| __nu“.” -

g3zI0HInY e e -,

ﬁzﬂ - ] N . aa..ﬂh_..ax_!-.!!._a!; ’

INERNELERE S T R e | T e

.s_nojt.un LLLEE: PO A WR-TET ey oL T

K pAyo s B TN 3 T PR T -

ALY LU, I M WIS A, A0 LTI
hvin il

AN IR AT SN T AT —

il

3 TEH AR NS AT P eyt (08
- il e Konpitem ik EAEADACY ML e efinace

...n!ﬁ.,..a..ni.ﬁo!&ls..ci T-!,t.....r_-
e Stini AV L un faiyy
P S AT, I AL BT B U RS AN

BHIALDE P SRS PR SO
AR Koy g 4w oI W)

£300|Ped X0uy Son




T R
[ I

s S i S e S
Ll

Tt

C L SR T

¥au 5g

IR QLT
FOUH TBHIOY BN |//
bl FE |1 —cy
T 3l Ll
[=]

| oo
ok

E

a1 7
AL o 2 [ T i& \ !
|
|

Dex} dwrL

TNEMS ACTHDIID DLW ..NL

NI K







upid Jusudoigneg
Iasop Amujwiaid

‘_an_.._un e [|B

ot gcderd Bupuooe) ok BecdiMiE Hvl
Pl (o (e RIS bl 1082000

0T LF| < OFFIT 8 S T RURTT YO AN LEL
[new / Bn TE 622  Aiueg sz wicy
A KWW

0 USROS LDNT. G PRI 2
L PR T R

HEREAES

Iofaq LR sy

FEL 37 HIURI 1 ARk
127 L | 700 1 ARmE)

T W AL DD PRt |

{8l ) PUTFELSL HOOHE Uetks
BETRS TR R PAGN PN K] 41 Palth] J Sy
i TAL L UHRADOE NI H IO Y
beuthy 0’ L 1. 10 gl jo oflonao sl

£

IR L P g AT Tty

d L BN BT LT A 1 UL

51553!!!
B
i
H
1

535555"’**5585&!&!!33"

|3§E[!§HH%EEE!E%EEEQE“

| e D

arrin [y ———  ——

e Py e e | WAL BE

e i e | MMTS G180/ LTI

BB HEHHE B UL BEE B B B LB BG EE

=0
L7 W3S D32t
JAEP PO e ——

DL POPHIEN 04 @ TCH U RRoTy
& i

Py ool G4 OF SolD U0da Iy

e | f e | 708 S

B BB EHEE B

BNIY TIVHS HLTYANDD

[N R E——

HEE

kmtitadaind { ) Smititarmas | AT TR DY

3E|3|5

e

EuSRSARSERSERR]| OMARE N

ElE B

33iEEE!EE!E%Ei§|E§§|§§|E§

LT SASENNEL. THIN

Buuoz "an'd

SOSTSLIUG] ‘MDY
s94Di83 PUDILOR]

EAE RN

Fi=fedo| | o[ > [ ===

g

£

Fa) SLROHE T

& birel e

NETH LTl
Uty

™

-:*il vig|e EN|°0_

42~ 0a

QEATINGG TISTIHAZL TR i

TG0 AN IR I

IRLGOFLE ENTT + DNEGINGAT « BOTRAmsn I'I 8]

eHidt iR ‘CUDEETLOEA
ISINVITASNDD ONIHIINID

ARGT=5E0 AEITh S

T3 I A AGENT WAL EECTISOY 3 R tEngheCh T LN e

H
£

e e
A FRTR x
ra cr dm g =
T bt
— e
AT £ Ellats
L33, Iie m -
] 3| 3
Tt om N
Cimiiet E
MWl
e g
Ak
U hediie ) Do
T i g7 o A
ey = !
z
[ N4] %
s -
el o
21134 91 =T -

ol 4o eodAL
YA e awr_
il 1
| E3
T SSEea Tt A TT-T A
| qep g

r——
I

e
I

g

il
b B S o

B
- =

|| snwcws | @
A || wdiiee, | o
_uﬂ!.ﬁng_wn%hﬂs Lo | vt 3w 40 | D
AN wEAdy T ffun g | L
i Bt R % i v | &
miiar nlnd. | e | b WD | O
LRI T R m
o0 mnem o Em( [
e [ o B 6
T || LR, | B
ot e |+ i B O
506 wrs Ebdi | — | e e Tr] o |
o BELEE
% Wh el oo i e G
bt g | P | e | @
wonis | @ | 28T | O |

[

/

o
o
g ]
s | [ ey
14 i e Ty
L ™ uichbion
A
____w m 2
F 51T £
4 o e
i n
# astaa s

1

g . 135 2 e ke

LRI

VDA T W S1h WO LM M i o ne e FX8 i B




